
Document last changed: 8/11/2010 9:08 AM 

 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, August 16, 2010 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

Work Sessions 
6:00 p.m. Moyock Wastewater   
 
Regular Agenda 
7:00 p.m. Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Item 1 Approval of Agenda 

Item 2 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Recognition of David Coelho and Travis Kemp   

Item 4 Recognition of Deputy Fred Smith   

Item 5 Action on Moyock Wastewater Project   

Item 6 Action on PB 87-56 Monteray Shores, PUD:  Request for a major 
amendment of Special Use Permit to designate 1.10 acres 
identified as General Business (GB) to Outer Banks Standard 
Residential (RO1) within the PUD. 

Item 7 Public Hearing and Action:  PB 00-06 Robert F. London, Inc.: 
Pursuant to Order of Currituck County Superior Court rehearing of 
the application of Robert F. London, Inc. for special use permit for 
an adult oriented night club at 9098 Caratoke Highway, Point 
Harbor,  Poplar Branch Township, Parcel Identification Number 
0132-000-133A-0000.   

Item 8 Public Hearing on closeout of FY 2002 Community 
Development Block Grant Scattered Site Grant program   

Item 9 Consideration of Ordinance  prohibiting metal detectors on 
County property 

1



Document last changed: 8/11/2010 9:08 AM 

 
Item 10 Appointment to Walnut Island Sanitary District   

Item 11 Consent Agenda: 
1. Award bid for Judicial Roof Replacement to Baker Roofing 

Company 
2. Resolution Surplus Property 2006 Ford 500  
3. Sheriff Department to declare surplus property 
4. Amend Personnel Policy Fire & EMS probation change 
5. Budget Amendments 
6. Request DOT to add South (left) end of Owens Beach Road to 

state system 
7. Approval of August 2, 2010, Minutes 

Item 12 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 13 County Manager’s Report 

Item 14 Closed Session: 
1. According to GS 143-318.11 (3) to consult with attorney in order 

to preserve the attorney client privilege 

Adjourn 

Special Meeting 

Tourism Development Authority Meeting 

Call to Order 

Consideration of Policy for inclusion in Business Promotions 

Budget Amendments for TDA 

Adjourn 

 

 

2



Consideration and Action:  PB 87-56 Monteray Shores, PUD: 
Request for a major amendment of Special Use Permit to 
designate 1.10 acres identified as General Business (GB) to 
Outer Banks Standard Residential (RO1) within the PUD. 

Ike McRee, County Attorney, stated that Crouse Gray would 
like to make a statement to the Board before you continue 
with request. 

Crouse Gray requested the Board not to proceed with this 
request and the hearing calls for consideration and this 
should be heard as a quasi judicial Board. 

Ike McRee, County Attorney, agrees that this should have 
been advertised as a quasi judicial hearing. 

Wyatt Booth, Attorney for Corolla Worship Center, stated 
they were prepared to present case. 

Bob Degabrielle, property owner, requested that the 
commercial allocation be returned. 

Ike McRee, County Attorney, stated that a special use 
permit has been issued for the same property. 

Commissioner Etheridge moved to proceed with hearing.  
Commissioner Gregory seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
DATE: June 21, 2010 

PB 87-56 Monteray Shores, Planned Unit Development 
 
ITEM:   PB 87-56 Monteray Shores, Planned Unit 

Development, Amended Special Use Permit, to 
designate 1.10 acres of commercial zoning to 
residential (RO1) within the PUD.  
 

LOCATION: Corolla, Monteray Shores, PUD, Poplar Branch 
Township. 

TAX ID: 0116-000-003W-0000   0116-000-0010-0000 
 
ZONING    

3



DISTRICT: Outer Banks Standard Residential (R01) with 
PUD overlay.   

  PUD Overlay (RO1):  318.94 acres 
  PUD Overlay (GB): 35.56 acres 
  PUD Overlay (RO1): 1.10 acres proposed 
 
PRESENT USE: Planned Unit Development, church site and 

undeveloped lands 
 
OWNER/ 
APPLICANT: Monteray Shores, Inc. 
   5299 Pennock Point Road 
   Jupiter, FL 
 
   Corolla Worship Center 
   PO Box 668 
   Nags Head, NC  27959 

   
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Open Space/Commercial/Apartments PUD-RO1/GB 
SOUTH Open Space/Undeveloped Commercial PUD-RO1/GB 
EAST: Commercial PUD-RO1/GB 
WEST: Open Space PUD-RO1 
 
 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the 

site as Full Service and Conservation 
within the Corolla subarea. 

 
OPEN SPACE: The required open space for Monteray Shores 

is 35% (124.46 acres). According to the 
proposed development plan Monteray Shores 
provides 37% (131.81 acres) of open space.     

  
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

• The applicants are seeking an amendment to the special 
use permit that would undo the zoning allocation 
approved by the Board of Commissioners on March 15, 
2010.  The request would reduce the commercial 
allocation by 1.10 acres to residential (RO1) within 
the Monteray Shores PUD.   

• The request is considered a major amendment to the 
Special Use Permit as defined in Section 11.9.2 of the 
UDO.   The amendment requires the approval of the 

4



permit issuing authority and may be obtained without a 
formal application, public hearing, or payment of any 
additional fee.  

 
 

II. OUTSTANDING TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE COMMENTS: 
Planning 
A. There is a discrepancy between the dedicated green 

area and the NC DENR wastewater permit allocations of 
green area.  (Staff commentary:  Green area is land 
that is set aside for future wastewater needs).  In 
2007, the original developer of Monteray Shores, PUD, 
dedicated easements and recorded green area maps 
within the PUD.  Approximately two months later, 
Carolina Water submitted a request to NC DENR to 
expand the wastewater treatment facility.  The request 
included a revised map that dedicated additional green 
area on property owned by Monteray Shores, Inc. (the 
original developer).   According to Bob Degabrielle, 
Monteray Shores, Inc., did not provide easements or 
dedication for the additional green area.  It is the 
opinion of the county attorney and Mr. Degabrielle 
that this additional allocation is not legally 
permitted since Monteray Shores, Inc. did not 
authorize or make available the additional land for 
wastewater green area.    In addition, Carolina Water, 
permit holder, must modify the green area and legally 
acquire additional lands suitable for wastewater 
disposal.   Outside of all concerns outlined, it 
remains uncertain whether Carolina Water has legal 
authority to locate green area within the utility 
easement identified on the recorded easement plat 
(plat cabinet K, slide 49).   

 
III. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 
Special Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 
Special use permits (SUP) are intended to allow the Board 
of Commissioners flexibility in the administration of the 
UDO. Through the SUP procedure, property uses which would 
otherwise be considered undesirable in certain districts 
can be developed subject to conditions of approval to 
minimize any negative effects they might have on 
surrounding properties. 
 

5



In order to approve an SUP, certain criteria must be 
satisfied.  The criteria and suggested findings of fact are 
outlined as follows: 
 
1. Completeness of application. 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The application is complete provided assurances for 

wastewater disposal are submitted from NC DENR and 
Carolina Water. 

 
2. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of 

Permissible Uses as a special use indicated with an “S”. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. Chapters 3 and 10 of the UDO allow a planned unit 

development as a permissible use with a special use 
permit. 

 
3. The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum 

requirements of this ordinance. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The conditions proposed meet the minimum requirements 

of this ordinance. 
 

4. The special use will not endanger the public health or 
safety: 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed development and conditions should have 

little to no negative impact on public health or 
safety. 

 
5. The special use will not injure the value of adjoining or 

abutting property and will be in harmony with the area in 
which it is located 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The Unified Development Ordinance indicates that a 

planned unit development is allowed in the RO1 base 
zoning district and PUD overlay with a special use 
permit. 

b. The requested zoning designation meets the UDO 
allocations for a PUD. 

 
6. The special use will be in conformity with the Land Use 

Plan or other officially adopted plan. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the properties as 

Full Service and Conservation within the Corolla 
subarea.  The Full Service classification supports the 

6



density and commercial allocations of a planned unit 
development provided design criteria is established to 
ensure commercial development protects and preserves 
the existing community.  The Conservation 
classification provides for long-term management and 
protection of significant, limited, or irreplaceable 
natural resources.  The classification is typically 
applied to areas that should not be developed 
(preserved), or if developed, done so in a very 
limited manner characterized by careful planning and 
cautious attention to the conservation of 
environmental features. The commercial allocation 
within the Conservation classification is being 
slightly reduced, and the proposed use and conditions, 
are in keeping with the LUP Policy statements and the 
Corolla subarea policy emphasis, some of which are: 

 
Policy HN3:  Currituck County shall especially 
encourage two forms of residential development, each 
with the objective of avoiding traditional suburban 
sprawl: 
1. OPEN SPACE DEVELOPMENTS that cluster homes on less 

land, preserving permanently dedicated open space 
and often employ on-site or community sewage 
treatment.  These types of developments are likely 
to occur primarily in the Conservation, Rural, and 
to a certain extent the Limited Services areas 
identified on the Future Land Use Map. 

2. COMPACT, MIXED USE DEVELOPMENTS or DEVELOPMENTS NEAR 
A MIXTURE OF USES that promote a return to balanced, 
self-supporting community centers generally served 
by centralized water and sewer.  The types of 
development are contemplated for the Full Service 
Areas identified on the Future Land Use Map.   

 
Policy CD8:  MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENTS, properly planned 
from the outside, which allow for a compatible mixture 
of residential and non-residential uses with a 
pedestrian scale and design, are encouraged.  
Similarly, businesses may be located adjoining (and 
therefore convenient to) an existing residential area, 
when such businesses can be shown to satisfy design 
considerations similar to a newly planned, pedestrian-
scaled, mixed use development.   

 
7. The special use will not exceed the county's ability to 

provide adequate public facilities, including, but not 

7



limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, 
and other county facilities.  Applicable state standards 
and guidelines shall be followed for determining when 
public facilities are adequate. Such facilities must be 
in place or programmed to be in place within two years 
after the initial approval of the plan (sketch plan in 
the case of major subdivisions). 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The county has adequate public facilities to service 

this subdivision. 
 
 
IV. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

The submittal appears to meet all of the requirements for 
SUP, and staff recommends conditional approval of the SUP 
subject to the findings of fact and the following 
conditions: 
 
1. Low Impact Development techniques such as cisterns 

that capture the rainwater from the roof and rain 
gardens should be provided in environmentally 
sensitive areas or lands designated Conservation by 
the 2006 Land Use Plan.  Cisterns should not discharge 
stormwater as sheet flow or concentrated flow across 
the ground as a means to drain cisterns.  Water 
captured in cisterns should be reused within the 
development through building design, for maintenance 
of the building and grounds, in LID techniques such as 
rain gardens or constructed wetlands, or other uses 
approved by the county.     (LUP Policy WQ5). 

3. All inland, non-tidal and coastal wetlands should 
remain undisturbed excluding elevated walkways and 
placed into a conservation easement, preservation 
trust, or turned over to the homeowner’s association 
(LUP Policy ES2, ES3). 

4. Any modification to green area must be approved by 
Currituck County and NC DWQ prior to implementation.  
Green area shall be identified by an easement, 
illustrated on a map, and recorded in the Currituck 
County Register of Deeds.  

5. All projects, residential and non-residential, shall 
meet the minimum zoning requirements in effect at the 
time of construction. 

 

8



Bob Degabriele, stated that this PUD has been recognized 
since 1998. 

Crouse Gray, Attorney, stated that there was a pending 
lawsuit on a contract to purchase this property with a 
decision to be made on June 28, 2010. 

Wyatt Booth, Attorney, would like to re-establish the 
property designation as residential. 

Mr. Gray stated that the lawsuit is on contract not 
rezoning.  Contract provided buyer has right to cancel and 
his client filed litigation on December 4, 2009.  Mr. Gray 
requested Board to defer decision until court has ruled. 

Reverend David Daniels, stated that he had plans to build a 
church with the property donated by Mr. Degabrielle. 

Chairman O’Neal closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Nelms moved to continue until court has ruled 
on the contract.  Commissioner Aydlett seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 
 

9



 1 

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DATE: August 16, 2010 
PB 00-06  R.F. London, Inc. 

 
Request :  To operate an adult and sexually oriented business consisting of a “Nightclub 

offering comedy, pool tables, video games, musicians, dancing, topless dancing, 
organized parties for businesses or groups.” The property is located on US 158, 
Point Harbor, in the building now occupied by Mermaids Nightclub, Tax Map 132, 
Lot 133A, Poplar Branch Township. 

 
 
I. SPECIAL USE PERMIT CRITERIA AND STAFF FINDINGS 
 
1. Completeness of application. (formerly Section 1402(1)(b)) 
 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The completed application was submitted on February 7, 2000. 

 
 
2. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible Uses as a special use 

indicated with an “S”. (formerly Section 1402(1)(a)) 
 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The requested permit, an adult oriented business (presently adult establishment), is 

within the jurisdiction of the Planning Board/Board of Commissioners according to 
Section 1310, use number 37.000 (presently Section 2.5 Permitted Uses Table). 

b. An adult oriented business (presently adult establishment) is allowed in the Heavy 
Manufacturing (HM) zoning district, not in the General Business (GB) zoning district.  
The subject property is zoned General Business (GB) and the applicant has not applied 
for a zoning map amendment. 

 
 

3. The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum requirements of this ordinance. 
(formerly Section 1402(1)(c)) 

 
Suggested Findings: The application is not in compliance with the following 
requirements of the Unified Development Ordinance: 
a. R. F. London, Inc. was granted a conditional use permit on January 26, 1994 to 

operate a nightclub and billiards/gameroom on US 158, Point Harbor Township, Tax 
Map 132, Lot 133A, by the Board of Adjustment based on hearings held August 25, 
1993 and January 26, 1994. During hearings, Mr. London testifies that the nightclub 
will not feature topless dancing. 

b. On May 20, 1994, Mr. John W. Halstead, Jr., attorney for R.F. London, Inc., sends a 
letter to County Attorney William H. Romm advising the county that topless dancing 
will be offered on a regular basis unless the county believes topless dancing would be 
grounds for revoking the conditional use permit. 

c. On May 25, 1994 Mr. William H. Romm, Currituck County Attorney, sends a letter to 
Mr. John W. Halstead advising him that topless dancing would be grounds for the 

10



 2 

county revoking R.F. London, Inc.'s conditional use permit. That determination was 
not appealed to the Board of Adjustment by Robert F. London, Inc. 

d. On August 13, 1994, an inspection by the county of Mermaids Nightclub verifies that 
topless dancing was occurring on the premises. 

e. August 31, 1994 The Currituck County Board of Adjustment revokes R.F. London, 
Inc.'s conditional use permit. 

f. September 19, 1994 Currituck County adopts an adult and sexually oriented business 
regulation (formerly Section 808 and 1310 of the UDO) which, among other 
conditions, requires such uses to locate in an "Heavy Manufacturing" zoning district 
with a special use permit granted by the Planning Board and Board of Commissioners 
and be located 1,000 feet from any dwelling and any R and RA zoning district. 

g. Robert F. London appeals the Board of Adjustment decision to revoke the conditional 
use permit on September 28, 1994.  

h. On December 29, 1994, Superior Court Judge Gary E. Traywick ruled: 1) the public 
hearing held on Mr. London's conditional use permit was invalid; 2) the Board hold a 
new hearing to determine if the petitioner's proposed use complies with the ordinances 
of Currituck County; and 3) that a new hearing be duly advertised as prescribed by 
ordinance. 

i. Robert F. London appeals the Superior Court Judge's ruling to the North Carolina 
Court of Appeals on January 24, 1995. 

j. North Carolina Court of Appeals dismisses Robert F. London's appeal on January 16, 
1996. The Superior Court Judge's ruling of December 29, 1994 stands. 

k. In letters dated February 12, 1996 and March 11, 1996, Currituck County informs Mr. 
Robert F. London and Mr. John Halstead, attorney for Mr. London, respectively, that 
a new application is needed stating the intended use in order to hold a new public 
hearing in accordance with the December 29, 1994 Superior Court Judge’s ruling. 

l.  In a letter dated April 1, 1996, Mr. Robert F. London submits a written statement 
indicating the type of entertainment being offered at Mermaids Nightclub, including 
"...music bands and acts, GoGo dancers, topless dancers, televised sporting events, oil 
wrestling, male revue shows, comedians, karaoki, pool tournaments and other 
entertainment acts typically associated with nightclubs.".  This is the first time Mr. 
Robert F. London submitted any type of request for topless dancing and adult oriented 
activities. Prior to April 1, 1996, the county never received a request to operate an 
adult oriented business. 

m. In a letter dated May 6, 1996, Currituck County acknowledges acceptance of Mr. 
Robert F. London’s April 1, 1996 letter as an amendment to his original conditional 
use permit application. 

n. On May 29, 1996, the Board of Adjustment holds a public hearing and denies R. F. 
London Inc.’s conditional use permit application for an adult and sexually oriented 
business based on the reasons stated in the June 4, 1996 order signed by the Chairman 
of the Board of Adjustment. 

o. On July 8, 1996 Robert F. London, Inc. appeals the Board of Adjustment decision to 
Superior Court. 

p. On September 28, 1999, Superior Court Judge Jerry R. Tillet ruled the Board of 
Adjustment shall rehear Robert F. London, Inc.’s conditional use permit pursuant to 
Sections 1304 and 808 of the UDO (presently Sections 2.5 and 3.7.1) AND the Board 
of Commissioners shall consider the applicant’s proposal pursuant to Section 808 
(presently Section 3.7.1) of the UDO and make specific findings of fact and 
conclusions of law to address the following: 
1. The Petitioner’s initial intended use; 

11



 3 

2. The secondary effects of the Petitioner’s initial use; 
3. The Petitioner’s amended use; 
4. The secondary effects of the Petitioner’s amended use 
5. How the secondary effects are affected by the different intended uses. 

q. Section 2201 (presently Section 11.8) of the Unified Development Ordinance requires 
a public hearing prior to granting a conditional use permit. 

r. Since the public hearing for Robert F. London, Inc.'s conditional use permit was 
revoked, Mermaids Nightclub does not have a conditional use permit to operate an 
adult business nightclub. Further, Mermaids Nightclub is not considered a 
nonconforming use under Article 15 of the Unified Development Ordinance because it 
has no permit to operate under. 

s. Robert F. London, Inc. does not have a vested right to operate Mermaids Nightclub 
because Section 2019 (1) and (2) (presently Section 11.12 (A) and (B)) requires a 
conditional use permit to obtain a vested right "...following notice and public hearing." 

t. Mermaids Nightclub has continued to operate an adult business by allowing topless 
dancing. Mr. London was convicted in District Court for operating Mermaids 
nightclub without a conditional use permit, paid the fine, and was ordered by the court 
to not operate until he had a valid permit (96CRS532). 

u. Sections 808 and 1310 (presently Sections 3.7.1 and 2.5) of the Unified Development 
Ordinance, adopted September 19, 1994, classifies topless nightclubs as "Adult 
Businesses" which requires such businesses to locate in a Heavy Manufacturing zoning 
district with a special use permit and 1,000 feet from any dwelling or R and RA zoning 
district, among other things. 

v. The property on which Mermaids is located, US Highway 158, Point Harbor, Tax 
Map 132, Lot 133A, Poplar Branch Township, is zoned General Business. Further, the 
building in which Mermaids is located is within 1,000 feet of 24 residential dwellings 
(17 in the year 2000) and immediately adjacent to an R zoning district. 

w. Because Mr. London did not submit a completed special use permit request for a 
nightclub offering topless dancing until February 7, 2000, and Currituck County 
adopted an ordinance on September 19, 1994 classifying such uses as adult businesses, 
then the provisions of the September 19, 1994 ordinance contained in Sections 808 
and 1310 (presently Sections 3.7.1 and 2.5) apply. 

x The adult business nightclub application of Robert F. London, Inc. does not comply 
with the former or present applicable requirements of the Unified Development 
Ordinance since the property is in a General Business zoning district (former Section 
808(5)(a) requires HM zoning district), is immediately adjacent to a residential zoning 
district (former Section 808(5)(b)(1) requires 1,000 feet spacing) is located within 
1,000 feet of 24 buildings (17 in the year 2000) being used as residential dwellings 
(former Section 808(5)(b)(1) requires 1,000 feet spacing). 

 
 
4. The special use will not endanger the public health or safety. (formerly Section 

1402(2)(a)) 
 

Suggested Findings: The proposed use will materially endanger the public health or 
safety for the following reasons: 
a. Mermaids Nightclub is immediately adjacent to a 29 lot residential subdivision known 

as Old Oak Estates, which contains 21 dwellings (14 in the year 2000). Old Oak 

12



 4 

Estates is zoned R "Residential". Mermaids is within 1,000 feet of 24 residential 
dwellings (17 in the year 2000). 

b. Mermaids Nightclub does not meet the locational (within a GB zone and needs a 
Heavy Manufacturing zone) nor the spacing requirements (must be 1,000 feet from 
any dwelling and R district; there are 24 dwellings (17 in the year 2000) within 1,000 
of Mermaids) of Section 808 (presently Section 3.7.1) established for adult businesses. 

 
 
5. The special use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will be in 

harmony with the area in which it is located. (formerly Section 1402(2)(b) and (c)) 
 

Suggested Findings: The proposed use will substantially injure the value of adjoining or 
abutting property and will not be in harmony with the particular neighborhood or area in 
which it is to be located for the following reasons: 
a. Mermaids Nightclub is immediately adjacent to a 29 lot residential subdivision known 

as Old Oak Estates, which contains 21 dwellings (14 in the year 2000). Old Oak 
Estates is zoned R "Residential". Mermaids is within 1,000 feet of 24 residential 
dwellings (17 in the year 2000). 

b. Mermaids Nightclub does not meet the locational (within a GB zone and needs a 
Heavy Manufacturing zone) nor the spacing requirements (must be 1,000 feet from 
any dwelling and R district; there are 24 dwellings (17 in the year 2000) within 1,000 
of Mermaids) of Section 808 (presently Section 3.7.1) established for adult businesses. 

c. A review of county tax office property valuations histories between 1990 and 2000 for 
27 lots in Old Oak Estates shows 24 properties decreased in value a total of 
$88,895.00 and 3 properties increased in value a total of $5,321.00. The net decrease 
in tax base for Old Oak Estates between 1990 and 2000 is $83,574.00. Mermaids 
Nightclub began offering topless dancing in the summer of 1994. 

 
 
6. The special use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted 

plan. (formerly Section 1402(2)(d)) 
  

Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed use does conflict with the County's Unified Development Ordinance but 

does not conflict with other plans. 
 
 
7. The special use will not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public facilities, 

including, but not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, and law enforcement, and other 
county facilities.  Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for 
determining when public facilities are adequate. Such facilities must be in place or 
programmed to be in place within two years after the initial approval of the plan (sketch 
plan in the case of major subdivision). 

 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed use is commercial and will not generate additional school children. 

 
 
II. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

13



 5 

 
Staff recommends denial based on the following: 
1. The proposed use does not meet the requirements of the Unified Development Ordinance, a 

required finding under Section 1402(1)(c) (presently Section 11.7.1(F)(12)(c)), because the 
zoning is improper (property currently zoned GB, former Section 1310 and 808(5)(a) requires 
HM zoning); and the adult business building is within 1,000 feet of a residential zoning district 
and within 1,000 feet of 24 buildings (17 in the year 2000) used as residential dwellings 
(former Section 808(5)(b)(1)). 

2. In accordance with the directive of Judge Tillet, the following findings are provided: 
a. The applicant’s initial intended use was a nightclub and billiards/gameroom. A conditional 

use permit application to appear before the Board of Adjustments for the initial use was 
submitted on 8/4/93 . 

b. The secondary impacts of the initial intended use were encompassed in the findings of fact 
adopted by the Board of Adjustments on January 26, 1994 and included in the attached 
exhibit. 

c. On February 7, 2000, Robert F. London, Inc. submitted a special use permit application to 
operate an adult and sexually oriented business consisting of a “Nightclub offering 
comedy, pool tables, video games, musicians, dancing, topless dancing, organized parties 
for businesses or groups.” The property is located on US 158, Point Harbor, in the 
building now occupied by Mermaids Nightclub, Tax Map 132, Lot 133A, Poplar Branch 
Township. 

d. Secondary affects of the amended use are considered under the special use permit criteria 
of Section 1402(2) (presently Section 11.7.1(F)(12)). However, the secondary affects do 
not apply because the controlling statues, former Sections 808 and 1310 (referred to in 
former Section 1402(1)(c)), requires adult oriented businesses to locate in a Heavy 
Manufacturing zoning district (presently required in Section 2.5 Permitted Uses Table). 
Further, Section 808 (presently Section 3.7.1) requires a minimum 1,000 feet spacing 
between any building housing an adult oriented business and an R zoning district and any 
building used as a dwelling. The proposed adult use building is located within a GB 
(General Business) zoning district, is immediately adjacent to an R zoning district, and is 
within 1000 of 24 buildings (17 in the year 2000) used as residential dwellings. 

 
 

III. PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION 
 
On April 11, 2000 the Planning Board recommended denial (9-0) of this request subject to the 
following: 
 

1.  The proposed use does not comply with the requirements of the Unified 
Development Ordinance (formerly Section 808 and Section 1310) because the 
zoning district, GB, does not allow adult and sexually oriented businesses with a 
special use permit and because the building in which the nightclub is in is within 
1,000 feet of 17 residential dwelling units and immediately adjacent to an R zoning 
district. 

 
2. The proposed use will not be in general conformity with the Unified Development 

Ordinance, which is officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners, due to 
violation of former Sections 808 and 1310. 

 
 

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION
1 Grantee County of Currituck 2 Grant Number 02C0948

3 Project Name 2002 Scattered Site Program 4 Project Number C1

R IATi4 1 AY fit

To Be Com leted b Reci ient

1RAgI1ih li

Program Activity Categories
a

Paid Costs Unpaid Costs

c

Total Costs

Col b c
d

Approved
Total Costs

e
a Acquisition 000 000
b Disposition
c Public facilities and improvements

000 000

1 Senior and handicapped centers 000 000
2 Pazks playgrounds and recreation facilities 000 000
3 Neighborhood facilities 000 000
4 Solid waste disposal facilities 000 000
5 Fire protection facilities and equipment 000 000

6 Parking facilities 000 000
7 Street improvements 000 000
8 Flood and drainage improvements 000 000
9 Pedestrian improvements 000 000

10 Other public facilities 000 000
11 Sewer improvements 000 000
12 Water improvements 000 000

d Clearance activities 3532846 3532846
e Public services 000 000
f Relocation assistance

g Construction rehab and reservation activities
27656188 27656188

p
1 Construction or rehab of com Indust bldgs 000 000

2 Rehabilitation of privately owned buildings 6155899 6155899
3 Rehabilitation of publicly owned buildings 000 000
4 Code enforcement 000 000
5 Historic preservation

h Development financin
000 000

g
1 Working capita 000 000
2 Machinery and equipment 000 000

i Removal of architectural barriers 000 000
j Other activities 000
k Subtotal 37344933 37344933
1 Planning 000 000
m Administration 5 2550 7
n Total 39600000 39600000
o Less Program Income Applied to Program Costs 000

E ual Grant Amount A lied to Pro ram Costs 39600000

escription
a

39600000

To Be

Completed By
Reci lent

Amount

b

li
Approved Amount

c
1 Grant AmountA lied To Pro am Costs From Line 39600000
2 Estimated Amount For Unsettled Third P Claims

3 Subtotal 39600000
4 Grant AmountPer Grant A Bement 40000000
5 Unutilized Grant To Be Canceled Line 4 Minus Line 3 400000
6 Grant Funds Received 39434900
7 Balance of Grant Pa able Line 3 Minus Line 6 165100

If Line 6 exceeds Line3 enter the amount of the excess on Line 7 as a negative amount This amount shall be repaid to DOC by
check unless DOC has reviousl a roved use of these funds

27



a Amount of existing program income NA

b Amount of anticipated program income

c If ro ram income exists or is antici ated describe the ro osed a lications

S

Are there any unpaid costs or unsettled third party claims against the recipientsgrant Type yes or no
NoIf yes in the box below describe the circumstances and amounts involved

Please note that all financial records supporting documents and other records pertinent to the community development program
must be retained for a minimum of five 5 years from the date of this letter

This grant is closed pending the Division of Community Assistance receipt and approval of your final audit Any findings noted
in that audit will be the responsibility of the
Town

City
County

It is hereby certified that all activities undertaken by the Recipient with funds provided under the grant agreement identified on

page 1 hereof have to the best of my knowledge been carried out in accordance with the grant agreement that proper provisions
have been made by the Recipient for the payment of all unpaid costs and unsettled third party claims identified on page 1 hereof
that the State of North Carolina is under no obligation to make any further payment to the Recipient under the grant agreement in
excess of the amount identified on Line 7 hereof and that every other statement and amount set forth in this instrument is to the
best of myknowledge true and correct as of this date

Date Typed Name and Title of Recipients Signature of Recipients
Authorized Representative Authorized Representative

S Paul ONeal

Board Chairman 1
a

This Certification of Completion is hereby approved Therefore I authorize cancellation of the unutilized contract commitment and

related funds reservation and obligation of less previously authorized for cancellation
from Section 6 line 6page 1
Date Typed Name and Title of DOC Signature of DOCs

Authorized Representative Authorized Representative
Gloria NanceSims

Director J

28



 

 

 

 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

COUNTY OF CURRITUCK                                    
 

 DANIEL F. SCANLON, II 
S. Paul O’Neal, Chairman 153 Courthouse Road / Post Office Box 39 County Manager 

O. Vance Aydlett, Jr., Vice-Chairman Telephone (252) 232-0300 / Fax (252) 232-3551 DONALD I. MCREE, JR. 
J. Owen Etheridge State Courier # 10-69-17 County Attorney 

 Gene A. Gregory  GWEN H. KEENE, CMC 
Barry C. Nelms 
John D. Rorer 
Janet L. Taylor 

 
Clerk to the Board 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Board of Commissioners 

FROM:  Ike McRee, County Attorney 

DATE:  August 10, 2010 

RE:  Proposed Ordinance Prohibiting Use of Metal Detectors On County Property  

 

 Recently the Whalehead Preservation Trust recommended that the county adopt an ordinance to prohibit 
use of metal detectors on the Whalehead Club property.  The expressed concern was the potential loss of 
historic artifacts by hobbyists searching the Whalehead Club grounds.  Following further discussion, staff 
believes that it is appropriate to protect all county property from the loss of potential historic artifacts or other 
property that, through the county, is owned by the public. 

 Attached for your consideration and adoption is a proposed ordinance that will prohibit the use of metal 
detectors on all county property. 

 

 

 

29



 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE  
CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AMENDING ARTICLE I OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
BY ADDING SECTION 9-8 TO PROHIBIT USE OF METAL DETECTORS ON 

COUNTY PROPERTY 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. Sect. 153A-121 a county may by ordinance 
define, prohibit, regulate or abate acts, omissions, or conditions, detrimental to the health, safety, 
or welfare of its citizens and the peace and dignity of the county; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C.Gen. Stat. Sect. 153A-169 a county may by ordinance adopt 
regulations concerning the use of county property. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners for the 
County of Currituck, North Carolina as follows: 
 

PART 1. Article I of the Code of Ordinances for Currituck County is amended by 
adding Section 9-8 to read as follows: 

 
Sec. 9-8  Metal detectors prohibited on county property. 
 
     On county property a person may not use or carry a metal detector, probe or similar 

 instrument used for remotely sensing the presence of objects or features at or below 
 ground level. 

 
 

 PART 2. The sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance 
are severable and if any phrase, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this ordinance shall be declared 
unconstitutional or invalid by the valid judgment or decree of a court of competent jurisdiction, 
such unconstitutional or invalid phrase, clause, sentence, or paragraph shall not affect any of the 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since the 
remaining provisions would have been enacted by the Board of Commissioners without the 
incorporation into this ordinance of any such unconstitutional or invalid phrase, clause, sentence, 
paragraph or section. 

 

 PART 3. All ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 PART 4. This ordinance is effective upon its adoption. 

  

30



 ADOPTED this ____ day of August, 2010. 

 
       __________________________________ 
       S. Paul O’Neal, Chairman 
       Board of Commissioners  
  
ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
Clerk to the Board        

   

 (COUNTY SEAL)      

 

 

 

31



Ike Mcree

From Ike Mcree

Sent Monday August 09 2010 1200 PM

To Starkey Sharp
Cc Dan Scanlon

Subject RE WISD

Starkey

The appointment of a successor for Gail Norris seat can be placed on next MondaysAugust 16 agenda if that is not

too soon for you

It might be good to meet this week regarding the settlement with Wachovia The Chairman of the Board of

Commissioners wants to have a closed session next Monday night to discuss with the rest of the Board which he believes

will support the countysacquisition of the plant

Ike

From Starkey SharpmailtoStarkey@smogobxcom
Sent Monday August 09 2010 1151AM

To Ike Mcree

Subject WISD

As discussed earlier we have a vacancy on the board for the sanitary district Gail Norris submitted her resignation Her

stated reason was the fact that her husband retired and they have changed their primary residence We have solicited

names and so far we have received two Kay Hanna and Frank Shinn have each submitted their names both live in the

district and appear to me to meet the criteria Ifyou or the commissioners want to talk with me about either of these

persons or anyone else please let me know Please put this on the agenda for the next commissioner meeting at which

it can be addressed and let meknow the day and time so I can be present to answer questions

As a separate matter I would like to meet with you and Dan Scanlon to explain the settlement we reached with Wachovia

and discuss the long term issues ofWalnut Island and Waterside Villages

Starkey Sharp
Sharp Michael Graham LLP
PODrawer 1027

Kitty Hawk NC 27949
2522612126ext 245 phone
2522611188fax

32



M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

TO:  Dan Scanlon, County Manager 
 
FROM:  Brenda McQueen, Public Works Dept. 
 
DATE:  August 10, 2010 
 
SUBJECT: Recommendation of Award – Judicial Roof Replacement 
 
 
On August 5, 2010, at 3:30 p.m., sealed bids were opened for the Judicial Center Roof 
Replacement project.  The bid tabulation sheet is attached. 
 
Our consultant engineering firm, Atlas Engineering, has evaluated the bids submitted and 
recommends the award be made to Baker Roofing Company of Norfolk, Virginia.   I concur with 
Atlas Engineering’s recommendation. 
 
If the Board of Commissioners approves this bid award to Baker Roofing Company, we will 
immediately proceed with contract execution and move forward with this project. 
 
 
cc:  Eric T. Weatherly, P.E. 
 
Attachments:  Letter of Recommendation 
  Bid Tabulation Sheet 
 
 

33



34



35



36



 
R E S O L U T I O N 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, North Carolina during its 
regularly scheduled meeting held on August 16, 2010, authorized the following, pursuant 
to GS 160A and 270(b), that the following property is declared surplus and is to be 
disposed of via public auction: 
 
2006 Ford Five Hundred 4-door sedan   VIN:  1FAFP23146G168929 

  
WHEREAS, the public auction shall take place via GovDeals.com. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of 
County of Currituck reserves the right to reject any and all bids. 
 
THIS THE _____ day of _________________, 2010. 
 
 
    CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
    ___________________________________________ 
    S. Paul O’Neal, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________ 
Gwen Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 

37



 
   

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Currituck County 

FIRE-EMS  
P.O. Box 267  

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
(252) 232-7746 (Office) 
(252) 232-0015 (Fax) 

 
“Positive, Progressive and Professional in Service” 

 

  

MEMO 

 
To:  Derinda Leary, Director 
 Human Resources Department 
From:    R. L. Glover, Interim Chief 
Cc:    
Date:   July 22, 2010 
 
Subject: Change in CCFEMS Employee Probation  
 
As recently discussed, I am respectfully requesting consideration and approval for the Department of 
Fire and Emergency Medical Service to be permitted to change the length of new employee probation 
from six (6) months to twelve (12) months.  The following are our reasons for this request for policy 
modification: 
 

• This change would not alter the current payroll practice of provide the employee the 
established incremental increases of six (6) months and one (1) year.  These increases would 
remain consistent or optional based on the employee’s performance during these work 
periods.  
 

• New CCFEMS employees and volunteers are required to complete a departmental orientation 
and a Field Training and Evaluation Program (FTEP) prior to being approved to function under 
general supervision by the Operational Medical Director. 

 
o This process can last as long as three (3) months should remediation or change of Field 

Training Officers be needed. 
o Also, the Technical Scope of Practice (TSOP) required of all field providers must be 

successfully completed during this time period to be placed in a general supervision 
status. 

 
• Upon approval by the OMD and Chief of the department, the employee is assigned to a shift 

and duty station.  Our current work schedule does not provide adequate opportunity for the 
probationary employee’s Shift Supervisor to directly observe their performance or complete 
and submit incremental performance evaluations to the Chief or Training Officer. 

 

38



• The call volume within the county over a six month period is not always conducive for adequate 
“live” or supervised observations and evaluations of the probationary employee.  This type of 
assessment is important during critical and unusual situations. 
 

• Also, the extend probationary period would provide more time for the new employee to be 
observed and feedback received regarding  working with various public safety partners to 
include the volunteer fire departments. 
 

• By extending the probation for an additional xix (6) months, the employee will be presented a 
greater opportunity work and adjust to various venues, districts, as well as, participate in an 
adequate amount of emergency and non-emergency responses. 
 

• Ensures that the new employee meets all employment performance and training requirements 
to include re-credentialing, additional system required training, and  knowledge, skills and 
abilities. 
 

• Provide the employee the opportunity to sufficiently learn and apply the various departmental 
and county policies, procedures and medical protocols. 

 
• Offer additional opportunity for the new employee to received formal feedback from 

supervisors and assessments from various assigned partners. 
 

• Assure that the new employee will have the physical and mental capacities to fulfill the 
requirements of the job, schedule and demanding work environment. 
 

• Finally, the Fire-EMS field provider is a position of “public trust.”  A longer probationary period 
would allow the department’s staff an sufficient opportunity for fair and unrushed observation 
of the following: 

 
o The new employee’s interpersonal skills with other county employees and partners; 
o The new employee’s  character and work ethic 
o The new employee’s personal and professional demeanor 
o Consistency in motivation; 
o Resilience and adaptation to the challenging work environment; 
o Fulfilling the expectations of the position. 

 
Thank you for taking the time to review this information and consider the change.  If possible and 
approved, I would like to implement this modification with the upcoming hiring process for current 
open positions and volunteer recruitment. 
 
As always, please feel free to give me a call should you have any questions or require additional 
information or justification. 
 

39



Number 2011007

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10531-514000 Travel 1,000$                       
10531-532000 Supplies 11,147$                     
10390-499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 12,147$                   

12,147$                     12,147$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 16th day of August, 
2010 , passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2011.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $12,147.

Emergency Management (10531) - To carry-forward 2009 Emergency Management 
Planning Grant funds remaining from last fiscal year.  This grant expires 9/30/2010.

40



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
August 2, 2010 
 
The Board of Commissioners met on Monday, August 2, 2010, at 
7:00 p.m. for its regularly scheduled meeting at the Historic 
Courthouse in the Commissioners Meeting Room with the following 
members present:  Chairman O’Neal, Commissioners Etheridge, 
Aydlett, Gregory, Nelms, Rorer and Taylor.  
 
Invocation Pledge of Allegiance 
Mr. Walter Gallop, Retired Military Chaplain, was present 
to give the invocation.  

Approval of Agenda 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to remove from the consent 
agenda, Resolution on eminent domain and discuss in closed 
session.  Commissioner Taylor seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried. 
Item 1 Approval of Agenda 

Item 2 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Presentation on Moyock Sewer Project   

Item 4 Public Hearing and Action:  PB 10-21 Gallop Funeral Services, 
Inc.:  Requests a special use permit to operate a crematorium in 
an existing building located at 100 LeBleu Avenue, Tax Map 123, 
Parcel 52A, Powells Point, Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 5 Public Hearing and Action:  PB 10-22 Currituck County:  Requests a 
text amendment to correct and clarify language in the following 
chapters of the Unified Development Ordinance:  Chapter 2 Zoning 
Districts, Chapter 4 Overlay Districts, Chapter 6 Environmental 
Protection, Chapter 8 Parking & Driveways, Chapter 11 Permit & 
Site Plan Requirements, Chapter 12 Map & Text Amendments, Chapter 
13 Board of Adjustment, and Chapter 16 Nonconforming. 

Item 6 Public Hearing and Action  on the proposed Rural Operating 
Assistance Program 

Item 7 Appointment to Fire and EMS Advisory Board   

Item 8 Consent Agenda: 
1. Authorization to acquire easement through eminent domain (moved 

to Closed Session) 
2. Approval of Senior Center Policies and Procedures 
3. Approval of July 6 and July 19, 2010, Minutes 

Item 9 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 10 County Manager’s Report 

41



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   2 

Closed Session 

Item 11 Adjourn 

Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on 
the regular agenda, please limit comments to 3 
minutes. 

Chairman O’Neal moved to open the public comment period. 

There being no comments, he closed the public hearing. 

Presentation on Moyock Sewer Project  

Dan Scanlon, County Manager, made a presentation on the 
Moyock Sewer Project. Mr. Scanlon stated that the system 
will be designed and developed to accommodate commercial 
flows only. He reviewed options under current consideration 
and challenges with Eagle Creek Wastewater Treatment Plan 
and the plans for a County built system. 

After much discussion Commissioner Etheridge moved to 
review both options and make a decision at the next 
meeting.  Commissioner Aydlett seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried. 

Public Hearing and Action:  PB 10-21 Gallop Funeral 
Services, Inc.:  Requests a special use permit to operate a 
crematorium in an existing building located at 100 LeBleu 
Avenue, Tax Map 123, Parcel 52A, Powells Point, Poplar 
Branch Township. 

Sworn testimony was given prior to making statements. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
DATE: August 2, 2010 

PB 10-21  Gallop Funeral Services, Inc. 
 
ITEM:   PB 10-21  Gallop Funeral Services, Inc.  request 

for a special use permit to operate a crematorium 
in an existing building.  
 

LOCATION: 100 LeBleu Avenue, Powells Point, Poplar Branch 
Township. 

TAX ID: 0123000052A0000 
 

42



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   3 

ZONING DISTRICT: Heavy Manufacturing (HM)    
  
PRESENT USE: Office/warehouse 
 
OWNER:  Le Bleu Corporation 
   PO Box 2093 
   Advance, NC  27006 
   252-207-7710 
 
APPLICANT:  Courtney N. Gallop 
   Gallop Funeral Services, Inc. 
   6917 South Croatan Highway 
   Nags Head, NC  27959 
   252-499-8695 

  
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Residential A/HM  
SOUTH Residential/Woodland A 
EAST: Farmland/Residential A 
WEST: Warehouse HM 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site 

as Limited Services classification within 
the Point Harbor subarea. 

 
SIZE OF SITE: .92 acre parcel (40,000 square feet) 
 
EXISTING USE: Warehouse with accessory office 
       
PROPOSED USE: Crematorium and office/warehouse  
 
UTILITIES: The building is served by county water and 

existing on-site septic.    Access to the 
property is provided by a private road. 

 
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

• The applicant is requesting a special use permit to operate 
a human crematory in an existing building located at 100 
LeBleu Avenue. 

• The applicant is requesting a reduction in the required 
parking standard.   Crematoriums require 1 parking space 
per 200 square feet of floor area.  The building was 
constructed as a warehouse with a parking standard of 1 
space per 400 square feet of floor area.  The applicant is 
requesting the parking standard of 1 space per 400 square 
feet of floor area be applied to this use.    The applicant 
also submitted an engineer’s report on crematory parking 
based on a survey of similar parking models and the subject 
site.  The report suggests a parking reduction for stand 
along crematoriums as follows: 

o 1 parking space per employee  at largest shift; 

43



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   4 

o 1 parking space for each vehicle or equipment 
parked outside; and, 

o 2 parking spaces for management 
• The crematorium will operate based on service demand. 

 
II. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 

Special Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 

Special use permits (SUP) are intended to allow the Board of 
Commissioners flexibility in the administration of the UDO. 
Through the SUP procedure, property uses which would otherwise 
be considered undesirable in certain districts can be 
developed subject to conditions of approval to minimize any 
negative effects they might have on surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a SUP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  
The criteria and suggested findings of fact are outlined as 
follows: 

 
1. Completeness of application. 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The application is complete. 

 
2. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of 

Permissible Uses as a special use indicated with an “S”. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. Crematoriums are an allowable use within the Heavy 

Manufacturing (HM) zoning district with a special use 
permit. 

 
3. The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum 

requirements of this ordinance. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed development with recommended conditions 

meets or exceeds the minimum requirements of this 
ordinance. 

 
4. The special use will not endanger the public health or 

safety: 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed development with recommended conditions 

should have no significant impact on public health or 
safety. 

b. The proposed human crematory produces less emissions 
impact than a fast food restaurant, a residential fire 
place, or a diesel truck. 

c. The proposed human crematory operates without smoke, 
odor, or noise and includes built-in environmental 
monitors. 

 
5. The special use will not injure the value of adjoining or 

abutting property and will be in harmony with the area in 
which it is located 
Suggested Findings: 

44



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   5 

a. The proposed human crematory operates without smoke, 
odor, or noise and would be virtually undetectable from 
the property lines. 

b. Traffic access to the site would be low volume and would 
consist mainly of professional funeral vehicles, service 
vehicles, and employee vehicles. 

c. The property is zoned heavy manufacturing with an 
existing structure that operates as a warehouse/office.   

d. The activities associated with a crematory, including 
loading and unloading, would be conducted within the 
fully enclosed building.   

e. The adjacent residential use is buffered by existing 
vegetation. 

 
6. The special use will be in conformity with the Land Use 

Plan or other officially adopted plan. 
Suggested Findings: 
The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Limited 
Services within the Point Harbor subarea.  The purpose of 
the Limited Services Area class is to ensure that the 
existing community character is preserved.  Design criteria 
should be established to ensure to ensure that commercial 
development protects and preserves the existing community 
in scale, architectural style, materials, landscaping, and 
site design.  Businesses designed to serve the tourist 
industry should not be prohibited provided the character 
and intensity of the use is in keeping with the character 
of the surrounding area.   
 
The proposed use is in keeping with the policies of the 
plan, some of which are: 

 
POLICY ED1:  NEW AND EXPANDING INDUSTRIES AND BUSINESSES 
should be especially encouraged that:  1) diversify the 
local economy, 2) train and utilize a more highly skilled 
labor force, and 3) are compatible with the environmental 
quality and natural amenity-based economy of Currituck 
County. 
 
POLICY CD6:  Appropriate OFFICE AND INSTITUTIONAL 
DEVELOPMENT, such as professional offices, small 
churches, individual medical offices, and the like, shall 
be encouraged to locate as a transitional land use 
between residential areas and commercial or industrial 
activities of higher intensity.  “Activities of higher 
intensity” are typically large-scale commercial uses or 
automobile-oriented commercial development but may also 
include major thoroughfares. 

 
7. The special use will not exceed the county's ability to 

provide adequate public facilities, including, but not 
limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and 
other county facilities.  Applicable state standards and 
guidelines shall be followed for determining when public 

45



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   6 

facilities are adequate. Such facilities must be in place 
or programmed to be in place within two years after the 
initial approval of the plan (sketch plan in the case of 
major subdivisions). 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed crematorium will not increase the county’s 

ability to provide adequate public facilities.   
 
 
III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical 
Review Committee recommends approval subject to the following: 
 
Planning, Donna Voliva 
Approved with comments 
1. The applicant requests a modification of the minimum 

parking standard for crematoriums.  The request must 
be granted by the Board of Commissioners and should 
include a parking reduction study prepared by a design 
professional.   

 
Albemarle Regional Health Services, Joe Hobbs 
Reviewed 
1. Ok to construct a crematory in the existing building 

as described as long as no embalming takes place and 
have a formal letter of approval as to air quality 
from the NCDENR Division of Air Quality. 

 
 
IV. PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

The proposed development with suggested conditions meets the 
requirements for special use permit approval.  Therefore, the 
staff recommends conditional approval of this special use 
permit subject to the following conditions that address 
requirements of the ordinance and policies of adopted plans: 
 
1. The issuance of the special use permit does not constitute 

site plan approval.  The site plan and landscape plan must 
be approved. 

2. The issuance of the special use permit for a human 
crematorium does not authorize the applicant to operate a 
funeral home or chapel from this location.   

3. All loading and unloading associated with the crematorium 
shall occur within a fully enclosed building. 

4. The usage of the facility shall not exceed the maximum 
number of cremations exempt under NCDENR, Air Quality 
permitting rules, as amended.    Should the facility 
increase the number of cremations to a number that requires 
NCDENR, Air Quality permitting, an amendment to the special 
use permit shall be required.   

5. The crematorium shall operate based on service demand.  
 
V.  PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 

46



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   7 

The Planning Board recommended approval with the findings of 
fact and staff recommendations in the case analysis and the 
parking standard of 1 space per 400 square feet of floor area 
is applied to this use. 
 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (7/13/10) 
Ms. Gallop stated this is an important issue which will 
give local families more choices in funeral planning. Ms. 
Gallop brought with her tonight Mr. Ed Brooks, owner of the 
property, Joe Emory, physical operator of the equipment; 
and Mr. Ben Andrews, general contractor to answer any 
questions you may have. Ms. Gallop provided an overview of 
her business. The crematorium would provide benefits to 
Currituck County, i.e. it would be an environmentally 
friendly, high tech business; the re-use of a vacant 
building; will be contributing to the county tax base; and 
will hire locally. Ms. Gallop stated cremation is 
significantly more affordable and it widens the range of 
funeral options. Ms. Gallop stated the crematory will be a 
benefit to Currituck as well as Northeastern North 
Carolina.  Ms. Gallop stated they are proposing 200 
cremations annually and if they exceeded 533 cases per year 
then they would need a NCDENR permit.   
 
Mr. West asked if the people that are hired would need some 
type of certification or training. 
Ms. Gallop stated the new hires would be going to a full 
day of training as well as training with the company 
installing the crematory.  
 
Mr. Midgette asked Ms. Gallop if she was okay with staff 
recommendations. 
 
Ms. Gallop stated yes but she is requesting the parking 
standard of 1 space per 400 square feet of floor area be 
applied to this use. Ms. Gallop stated that her engineer 
stated that parking should not be based on square footage 
rather employee to vehicle.                          
 
Mr. Clark asked if time and weather influence when 
cremations are done. 
 
Ms. Gallop stated her objective is to have the remains back 
to the family in the most expeditious way possible. Time 
and weather have absolutely no baring in the process.  
 
Mr. Emory stated you will not see any smoke that comes out 
of the machine but in very rare circumstances you may see 
steam which looks like a very light gray storm cloud.  This 
is very rare. 

47



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   8 

 
 
ACTION 
Mr. West moved to approve PB 10-21 with the findings of fact 
and staff recommendations included in the case analysis and 
the following conditions: 

• Parking standard of 1 space per 400 square feet of 
floor area be applied to this use. 

Mr. Clark seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Chairman O’Neal opened the public hearing. 

Courtney Gallop, applicant, agreed with Staff 
recommendations and introduced staff present to answer any 
questions. 

There being no further comments, Chairman O’Neal closed the 
public hearing. 

Commissioner Gregory moved to approve with the findings of 
fact and staff recommendations included in the case 
analysis.  Commissioner Aydlett seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 

Public Hearing and Action:  PB 10-22 Currituck County:  
Requests a text amendment to correct and clarify language 
in the following chapters of the Unified Development 
Ordinance:  Chapter 2 Zoning Districts, Chapter 4 Overlay 
Districts, Chapter 6 Environmental Protection, Chapter 8 
Parking & Driveways, Chapter 11 Permit & Site Plan 
Requirements, Chapter 12 Map & Text Amendments, Chapter 13 
Board of Adjustment, and Chapter 16 Nonconforming. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the text amendments. 
 
The enclosed text amendment submitted by the Currituck 
County Planning Department is intended to clarify and 
revise miscellaneous sections of the Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO). Staff seeks to correct and clarify the 
identified discrepancies in the UDO as it relates to: 
 

1. Conditional zoning modifications of approval 
(clarify the procedure for modifications to 
conditional zoning approvals). 

2. Parapets, uncovered decks, and observation platforms 
(clarify the height measurement) 

3. Outer Banks overlay sign applicability;  (correct  
zoning reference) 

48



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   9 

4. V-zone certification form; (correct conflicting form 
name) 

5. Outer Banks shopping center parking applicability; 
(correct zoning reference) 

6. Minor and Major amendments to permits and plans; 
(clarify and revise the major and other amendments 
to permits and plans procedure)   

7. Rezoning application submittal; (require all 
rezoning applications to be signed by the property 
owner);  

8. Board of Adjustment notification process for 
variance, appeals, and interpretations; (correct the 
notification process) and, 

9. Nonconforming, off-premise signs (clarify 
maintenance and illumination requirements). 

 
The Planning Board recommended unanimous approval at their 
July 13, 2010 meeting. 
If you have any questions please feel free to contact Donna 
Voliva at 252-232-6032 or dvoliva@co.currituck.nc.us.  
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (7/13/10) 
Mr. West recommended that these be handled on an individual 
basis. 
 
Item 1 – Conditional Zoning Modifications 
 The Planning Board recommended: 

Ø The applicant discloses on the application what they 
will be doing. 

Ø  Staff to put in 1 time only for subsections B(1) 
and B(2). 

 
Item 2 – Landscaping/Screening for Automotive/Boat/Heavy 

Equipment/Manufactured and Modular Homes Sales and 
Service 

 The Planning Board recommended bring back at a later 
date. 

 
Item 3 – Outer Banks Overlay Sign Applicability 
 Okay 
 
Item 4 – V-Zone Certification Form 
 Okay 
 
Item 5 – Outer Banks Shopping Center Parking Applicability 
 Okay 
 
Item 6 – Minor and Major Amendments to Permits and Plans 
 Okay 
Item 7 – Rezoning Application Submittal 

49



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   10 

 The Planning Board recommended current property 
owner(s). 
 
Item 8 – Board of Adjustment Notification Process 
 Okay 
 
Item 9 – Nonconforming Off-Premise Signs 
 Okay 
 
Item 10 – Height Requirements 

The Planning Board recommended 35 feet to the top of 
the rail and to put a clause in to exclude 
alternative energy devices. 

 
ACTION 
Mr. West moved to approved PB 10-22 with the modifications 
as presented. Mr. Bell seconded the motion. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
Currituck County 

PB 10-22 
UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 

 
Amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 2, 
Zoning Districts to provide additional language for 
alterations to conditional zoning approvals, clarify the 
height measurement of parapets, uncovered decks, and 
observation platforms; Chapter 4 Overlay Districts to 
correct sign applicability; Chapter 6 Environmental 
Protection to correct the name of the V-zone certification 
form; Chapter 8  Parking & Driveways to correct Outer Banks 
Shopping Center applicability; Chapter 11 Permit & Site 
Plan Requirements to correct major amendments to permits; 
Chapter 12  Map and Text Amendments to require owner 
authorization for all rezonings; Chapter 13 Board of 
Adjustment to correct the notification procedure for 
Variance applications; and, Chapter 16 Nonconforming to 
provide referenced illumination provisions for 
nonconforming signs.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County 
of Currituck, North Carolina that the Unified Development 
Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
Item 1: That Chapter 2 Zoning Districts is amended by 
deleting the strikethrough language, adding the following 
underlined language, and adjusting subsequent lettering:  
 
2.3.8 Alterations to Approval 
 

50



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   11 

A. Except as provided below, changes to an approved 
application or to the conditions attached to the 
approved application shall be treated the same as 
amendments to these regulations or to the zoning map and 
shall be processed in accordance with the procedure in 
this ordinance. 

 
B. The Administrator or designee shall have the delegated 

authority to approve an administrative amendment change 
to an approved CD site plan no more than one time.  The 
standard for approving or denying such a requested 
change shall be that the change does not significantly 
alter the site plan or its conditions and that the 
change does not have a significant impact upon abutting 
properties.  Any decision must be in writing stating the 
grounds for approval or denial. 

 
1. An insignificant change for nonresidential 

development is any change that increases the 
intensity of the development by no more than 5% of 
the approved requirement or 500 square feet, 
whichever is less. 

 
2. An insignificant change for residential development 

is any change that decreases density, increases open 
space, slight lot line realignments, and slight 
relocation of streets or drive aisles. 

 
3. The Administrator shall have the discretion to 

decline to exercise the delegated authority and 
require a public hearing before the Board of 
Commissioners. 

 
4. Any request for an administrative amendment shall be 

pursuant to a written letter, signed by the property 
owner(s), to the Administrator detailing the 
requested change.  Upon request, the applicant must 
provide any additional information that is 
requested.  Accompanying the letter shall be the 
applicable fee for administrative review.  Upon an 
approval of an administrative amendment, the 
applicant must file a sufficient number of copies of 
a revised site plan as deemed necessary by the 
administrator. 

 
5. If the Administrator denies the requested amendment, 

then the applicant can appeal that decision to the 
Planning Board for its review and decision, pursuant 
to the standard above.  If appealed, this requires 
notification to adjacent property owners within 15 

51



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   12 

days of the filed appeal.  If the Planning Board 
denies approval of the requested change, then the 
applicant must file a rezoning petition for an 
amendment to the site plan to receive further 
consideration. 

 
 
2.6.4 2.6.5 Height Requirements 

 
B.  The height of  parapets, uncovered decks,  and 

observation platforms shall be measured from grade 
plane to the highest uncovered surface, including the 
rail or bench, and shall meet the district height 
limitations set forth in the dimensional requirements 
of this chapter.   

 
 
Item 2: That Chapter 4 Overlay Districts is amended by 
deleting the following strikethrough language:  
 

4.7.4.1 Applicability 
These regulations shall apply only to the Outer Banks 
Overlay District (RO1) within Poplar Branch Township. 

 
 
Item 3: That Chapter 6 Environmental Protection is 
amended by deleting the following strikethrough language 
and adding the following underlined language:  
 
6.4.6 Coastal High Hazard Areas (Zones VE and V1-30) 
 
E. A registered professional engineer or architect shall 

certify that the design, specifications and plans for 
construction are in compliance with the provisions 
contained in this Chapter on the current version of the 
North Carolina “National Flood Insurance Program V-Zone 
Certification”  Currituck County V-Zone Certification 
form. 

 
 
Item 4: That Chapter 8 Parking & Driveways  is amended by 
deleting the following strikethrough language and adding 
the following underlined language:  
 
Retail 
Shopping Centers 1 space per 200 square feet of gross floor area 

for 80% of building 
RO1 Outer Banks Overlay  District:  1 space per 
200 square feet gross floor area except for 
restaurants, theaters, and outdoor recreation 
uses where applicable standards apply. 

52



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   13 

 
 
Item 5: That Chapter 11 Permit & Site Plan Requirements 
is amended by adding the following underlined language and 
deleting the following strikethrough language:  
 
Section 11.9  Admendments to Permits      
 
A developer requesting approval of changes shall submit a 
written request for such approval to the administrator, 
which request shall identify the changes.  The 
administrator shall determine if the amendment is minor, or 
major, or is another type of amendment. 
 
11.9.2 Major Amendments 
 
A. Major amendments to the permit (including approved 

plans) are permissible with the approval of the permit 
issuing authority and shall be processed as new 
applications.  Such permission may be obtained without a 
formal application, public hearing, or payment of any 
additional fee.   If such requests are required to be 
acted upon by the Board of Commissioners, the Planning 
Board, or Board of Adjustment, new conditions may be 
imposed, but the applicant retains the right to reject 
such additional conditions by withdrawing the request 
for an amendment and may then proceed in accordance with 
the previously approved permit. 

 
B. For purposes of this section, major amendments are those 

that have substantial impact on neighboring properties, 
the general public, or those intended to occupy or use 
the proposed development, such as an increase in 
density, decrease of open space, changing a zoning 
designation, major shifting of lot lines, and major 
shifting of streets.  This is not intended to be an all 
inclusive list.   

 
11.9.3 Other Amendments 
 
A. All other requests or changes in approved plans will be 

processed as new applications.  If such requests are 
required to be acted upon by the Board of Commissioners, 
the Planning Board or Board of Adjustment, new 
conditions may be imposed, but the applicant retains the 
right to reject such additional conditions by 
withdrawing his request for an amendment and may then 
proceed in accordance with the previously issued permit. 

 

53



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   14 

B. Whenever a preliminary plat is proposed to be amended or 
revised either by, but not limited to, changing a zoning 
designation or for the reallocation of density, the 
Board of Commissioners shall hold a public hearing prior 
to amending or revising the plan.  Written notification 
of the public hearing shall be mailed to all recorded 
property owners whose property will be affected by the 
change as well as the owners of record of all property 
any portion of which is within 200 feet of the exterior 
lines of the phases or areas proposed to be changed. 
 
 

Item 6: That Chapter 12 Map and Text Amendments is 
amended by adding the following underlined language:  
 
12.5.1 Review Process 
 
B. Application Submittal 

The applicant shall submit to the administrator a fee 
and complete application signed and authorized by the 
current property owner(s) stating the current and 
requested zoning of the property.  This shall not apply 
if the applicant is the county or an agent of the 
county.   
 

Item 7: That Chapter 13 Board of Adjustment is amended by 
adding the following underlined language and deleting the 
following strikethrough language:  
 
13.7.1 Review Process 
 

3. Notice of public hearing shall be given as follows: 
 

a. The applicant planning staff shall notify by 
certified mail all provide notice to all property 
owners within 200 feet of the extreme limits of 
the subdivision subject site as their names appear 
in the county tax record at least ten 10 days, but 
not more than 25 days, prior to the hearing.  The 
applicable names and addresses shall be supplied 
by the department upon request by the applicant.  
The applicant shall provide the department with a 
copy of the notice sent to property owners and 
post office receipts at least five days prior to 
the public hearing date.  The notice shall include 
the date, time, place of the board meeting, and 
nature of the hearing. 

 
 

54



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   15 

Item 8: That Chapter 16 Nonconforming is amended by 
relocating the following text to a new section by adding 
the following underlined language and renumbering the 
remaining text:  
 
16.9.2 Nonconforming, Off-Premise Signs  

16.9.2.1  Replacement and Relocation  
 

A. A nonconforming off-premise sign may be replaced on 
the same location so long as:  

 
1. The new sign does not exceed the specifications 

of the nonconforming sign being replaced in terms 
of height, display surface area, number of sides, 
setback and illumination.   

 
2. Application for a permit to erect the new sign is 

made within 180 days after the existing 
nonconforming sign is removed.  

 
3. The new sign is located within the footprint 

boundaries of the nonconforming off-premise sign 
being replaced. In the case of nonconforming on-
premise signs, the sign can be relocated on the 
same property subject to applicable setback 
standards.  

 
B. A nonconforming off-premise sign may be relocated 

on the same lot so long as once relocated, the off-
premise sign: 

 
1. Shall not exceed 300 square feet in surface area. 
 
2. Shall not be less than 300 feet from a pre-

existing off-premise sign on the same side of the 
road. 

 
3. Shall not exceed a height, measured from ground 

level, of 20 feet, unless the sign is placed 
lower than the road bed, under which 
circumstances the sign may have a height equal to 
20 feet above the road bed, not to exceed 25 feet 
from ground level. 

 
4. Shall not be located closer than 15 feet to a 

street right-of-way or within a sight triangle. 
 
5. Shall not be located within the minimum structure 

side and rear yard setbacks required by Chapter 
2. 

55



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   16 

 
C. A nonconforming off-premise sign may be relocated 

to an adjacent lot so long as once relocated, the 
off-premise sign: 

 
1. Shall not exceed 300 square feet in surface area. 
 
2. When attached to the wall of a structure shall 

not exceed 30 percent of the total surface area 
of the wall on which the sign is located and 
shall not be located on the same wall as any 
other off-premise sign. 

 
3. Shall not exceed a height, measured from ground 

level, of 20 feet, unless the sign is placed 
lower than the road bed, under which 
circumstances the sign may have a height equal to 
20 feet above the road bed, not to exceed 25 feet 
from ground level. 

 
4. Shall not extend above any parapet or be placed 

upon any roof surface, except that for purposes 
of this subsection, roof surfaces constructed at 
an angle be regarded as wall space.  This 
subsection shall not apply to displays, including 
lighting, erected in connection with the 
observation of holidays on the roofs of 
residential structures. 

 
5. Shall not be located closer than 15 feet to a 

street right-of-way or within a sight triangle. 
 
6. Shall not be located within the minimum structure 

side and rear yard setbacks required by Chapter 
2. 

 
7. Shall not be located within 1,500 feet on the 

same side of the road of any part of another off-
premises sign (other than temporary signs 
regulated under Chapter 7 or exempt signs on the 
same side of the road or highway). For purposes 
of determining the permissible location of an 
off-premises sign: 

 
a. A sign for which a permit authorizing initial 

construction was issued prior to the permit 
for the off-premises sign in question shall 
be regarded as existing from the date the 
permit for such other sign was issued (unless 

56



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   17 

such permit has expired or been revoked); 
and, 

 
b. A nonconforming sign that has been removed 

for the purpose of being replaced in 
accordance with Section 16.9.2 shall be 
regarded as existing, provided that the sign 
has not been removed for more than 180 days 
without application for its replacement 
having been made as required by this 
ordinance. 

 
8. Shall not result in a net increase of off-premise 

signs allowed under this section. 
 
9. Shall be demolished prior to a permit being 

issued for its replacement. The demolition permit 
issued for the existing sign shall serve as 
documentation that the adjacent lot contained an 
off-premise sign. 

 
 
 16.9.2.2  Maintenance 
10. All off-premise signs Sshall meet the following 

maintenance requirements: 
 

A. All off-premises signs and all components thereof, 
including without limitation supports, braces, and 
anchors, shall be kept in a state of good repair. 
With respect to off-premises freestanding signs, 
components (supporting structures, back, etc.) not 
bearing a message shall be constructed of materials 
that blend with the natural environment or shall be 
painted a neutral color to blend with the natural 
environment; 

 
B. If an off-premises sign other than a billboard 

advertises a business, service, commodity, 
accommodation attraction or other enterprises or 
activity that is no longer operating or being 
offered or conducted, that sign shall be considered 
abandoned and shall, within 30 days after such 
abandonment, be removed by the sign owner, owner of 
the property where the sign is located, or other 
party having control over such sign; 

 
C. If the message portion of an off-premises sign is 

removed, leaving only the supporting “shell” of a 
sign or the supporting braces, anchors, or similar 
components, the owner of the sign or the owner of 

57



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   18 

the property where the sign is located or other 
person having control over such sign shall, within 
30 days of the removal of the message portion of 
the sign, either replace the entire message portion 
of the sign or remove the remaining components of 
the sign. This subsection shall not be constructed 
to prevent the changing of the message of a sign; 
and, 

 
D. The area within ten feet in all directions of any 

part of an off-premises freestanding sign shall be 
kept clear of all debris and all wide natural 
undergrowth more than 12 inches in height. 

 
E. For the purpose of increasing or enhancing the 

visibility of any off-premises sign, a person shall 
not damage, trim, destroy, or remove any trees, 
shrubs, or other vegetation located: 

 
1. Within the right-of-way of any public street or 

road, unless the work is done pursuant to the 
express written authorization of the North 
Carolina Department of Transportation; 

 
2. On property that is not under the ownership or 

control of the person doing or responsible for 
such work, unless the work is done pursuant to 
the express authorization of the person owning 
the property where such trees or shrubs are 
located; and, 

 
3. In any area where such trees or shrubs are 

required to remain under a permit issued under 
this ordinance. 

 
16.9.2.3.  Illumination  

11. All off-premise signs Sshall meet the following 
illumination requirements: 

 
A. No off-premises sign within 250 feet of a pre-

existing residence not owned by the owner of the 
sign may be illuminated between the hours of 12:00 
midnight and 6:00 a.m., unless the impact of such 
lighting beyond the boundaries of the lot where 
the sign is located is entirely inconsequential 
(less than 1.5 foot candles at the lot line). A 
residence shall be deemed “pre-existing” for the 
purposes of this subsection if it existed (or 
construction of the residence had begun) before a 

58



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   19 

permit was issued under the NC State Electrical 
Code authorizing the installation of the lighting; 

 
B. Lighting directed toward an off-premises sign 

shall be shielded so that it illuminates only the 
face of the sign and does not shine directly into 
a public right-of-way or residential premises; 
and, 

C. No off-premises sign may contain or be illuminated 
by flashing or intermittent lights or lights of 
changing degrees of intensity, except signs 
indicating the time, date, weather conditions, or 
similar information. 

 
12. Shall not necessitate that a person, for the purpose 

of increasing or enhancing the visibility of any 
off-premises sign, damage, trim, destroy, or remove 
any trees, shrubs, or other vegetation located: 

 
i. Within the right-of-way of any public street or 

road, unless the work is done pursuant to the 
express written authorization of the North 
Carolina Department of Transportation; 

 
ii. On property that is not under the ownership or 

control of the person doing or responsible for 
such work, unless the work is done pursuant to 
the express authorization of the person owning 
the property where such trees or shrubs are 
located; and, 

 
iii. In any area where such trees or shrubs are 

required to remain under a permit issued under 
this ordinance. 

 
 

 
Item 9: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable 
and if any of its provisions or any sentence, clause, or 
paragraph or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held unconstitutional or violative of 
the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall 
not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions which 
can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application. 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
FEE SCHEDULE 

59



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   20 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW FEES 
   Minor Subdivision (Conventional) $25.00/Lot 
   Private Access or Family Subdivisions 50.00/Lot 

   Site Plan (Commercial) .02/S.F. of gross floor area; 
50.00 minimum 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT FEES 
   Appeal $150.00 
   Conditional Use Permit/Amended Conditional Use Permit    150.00 
   Conditional Use Permit Renewal 25.00 
   Variance 150.00 
LITERATURE AND MATERIALS FEES 
   Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) $15.00  
   Amendments to UDO (Quarterly) 12.00  
   Land Use Plan 20.00  
   Official Zoning Map (Copy) 7.50 
   Planning Board Agenda (Yearly) 7.50 
   Planning Board Minutes (Yearly) 35.00 
   Board of Adjustment Agenda (Yearly) 7.50 
   Board of Adjustment Minutes (Yearly) 25.00 
PLANNING BOARD FEES 
   Sketch Plan: 
Ø *Major Subdivision (Including PUD, RMF) 
Ø Amended Sketch Plan, Preliminary Plat, or Final Plat 

 
$100.00/Lot 

250.00 
   Rezoning 150.00+ $5.00/acre or part thereof 
   Text Amendment to UDO  150.00 
   Amend Land Use Plan 150.00 
   Special Use Permit (SUP) or Amended SUP  150.00 
   Continuance Request  125.00 

  Personal Copies 0.10 (1-sided) 
0.15 (2-sided) 

*Preliminary, amended preliminary, final, and amended final plats will be assessed at $33.00 
per lot fee if the sketch plan was approved prior to March 3, 2003. 

  
 

Chairman O’Neal opened the public hearing.  There being no 
comments, he closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve due to its 
consistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan.  Commissioner 
Gregory seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Public Hearing and Action on the proposed Rural Operating 
Assistance Program 

Dan Scanlon, County Manager, reviewed the funding for July 
1, 2010 through June 30, 2011, in the amount of $142,052. 

Chairman O’Neal opened the public hearing.  There being no 
comments, he closed the public hearing. 

60



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   21 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve.  Commissioner 
Gregory seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Appointment to Fire and EMS Advisory Board   

tabled 

Consent Agenda: 
1. Authorization to acquire easement through 

eminent domain (was removed to closed session) 
2. Approval of Senior Center Policies and 

Procedures 
3. Approval of July 6 and July 19, 2010, Minutes 

 
Commissioner Nelms moved to approve.  Commissioner Rorer 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
RESOLUTION AFFIRMING CERTAIN POLICIES FOR PARTICIPATION IN 
ACTIVITIES AT COUNTY SENIOR CENTERS AS RECOMMENDED BY THE 

SENIOR CITIZENS ADVISORY BOARD 
 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-169 a 
county may by ordinance regulate the use of county 
property; and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-149 a 
county may establish, support and maintain programs of 
supervised recreation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Currituck County Senior Citizens Advisory 
Board has considered and recommended the adoption of 
certain policy to ensure the appropriate use and access of 
county senior centers and to ensure health, safety and 
welfare of senior citizens participating in county 
sponsored senior citizen recreational activities.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of 
Commissioners for Currituck County, North Carolina that the 
following policy amendment for use of county senior centers 
and senior citizen activities is hereby adopted: 
 

“POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR DEALING WITH DISRUPTIVE 
BEHAVIOR OF SENIOR CENTER PARTICIPANTS 

 
In order to provide senior citizens with pleasant, 
enriching, and healthful activities, the Senior Center 
staff shall act as necessary to prevent disruption by 
individual participants. 
 

61



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   22 

Unfortunately, from time to time, individual participants 
may act in such a way as to disrupt programs or activities 
of the Center or on an outing.  Because of that, there is a 
need for the center to develop policies and procedures that 
guide the staff in dealing with those who are disruptive. 
 

1. When a participant’s behavior disrupts activities or 
programs of the Center or on outings, or when a 
participant is verbally abusive, that behavior will 
be reported to the Senior Center Coordinator and/or 
the Director of Parks and Recreation. 
 

2. A written brief incident report will be completed 
and maintained in a confidential file. 

 
3. The written account will be presented to the Senior 

Citizen’s Advisory Board, and if that Board is of 
the opinion that an individual’s behavior is so 
disruptive or could be a safety hazard to self or 
others that it is depriving other participant’s of 
pleasant experiences, or if that individual is 
disruptive, abusive or would cause harm to 
participants or staff, the board will then instruct 
the Senior Center Coordinator to inform the 
disruptive participant of his or her behavior, and 
how it impacts negatively on the other participants 
and staff.  The individual will then be informed 
that such behavior will not be tolerated in the 
Center or on outings in the future, and he/she will 
be clearly warned that any further disruptive 
behavior on his/her part will result in his/her 
being excluded from the Center’s activities, 
programs and outings. 

 
4. If the participant demonstrates disruptive behavior, 

the Board will review the report of the specific 
incident.  If there is a unanimous agreement that 
the behavior is disruptive or a safety hazard to 
self and others to the point of depriving other 
participants, the Board will inform the disruptive 
participant that he/she cannot attend further 
activities, programs or outings for a period of 
sixty days. 

 
5. If the participant returns to the Center following 

the sixty day exclusion, and the disruptive behavior 
continues, the Board can, by unanimous agreement, 
permanently exclude the participant. 

 

62



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   23 

6. If the participant feels that the permanent 
exclusion is unfair, he/she may appeal for a fair 
hearing before the Board.  The Board will hear the 
participant’s appeal and the staff’s reason for 
exclusion.  The Board’s decision regarding sixty day 
exclusion and the disruptive behavior is continued, 
the Board can, by unanimous agreement, permanently 
exclude the participant. 

 
APPEAL:  If the participant disagrees with permanent 
exclusion, he/she may appeal to the Center’s Board for a 
hearing.  The Executive Committee and the Director of the 
Nutrition Program will hear the participant’s appeal and 
the staff’s reasons for exclusion.  The Board’s decision 
regarding exclusion shall be final. 
 
 
Policy for Age Participation in the Currituck County Senior 

Centers 
 

Currituck County recognizes seniors that are age 55 years 
and older to participate in activities and programs at the 
three Senior Centers in Currituck County, Currituck, 
Powells Point and Knotts Island. 
 
Currituck County appreciates residents that would like to 
join in on the activities but you must be 55 years of age 
or older. 
 

 
Policy for Participation 

 
Currituck Senior Centers are intended for active older 
adults 55 years and older who can participate in activities 
and programs of their choice. 
 
Criteria for senior citizens to be considered appropriate 
for senior center programs, services and activities include 
but not limited to: 
 

1. Being able to toilet themselves. 
2. Being able to feed themselves. 
3. Being oriented to their current surroundings. 
4. Being able to behave in a non-aggressive or non-

disruptive manner. 
5. Being able to participate in a program, activity or 

service that is appropriate for them. 

63



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   24 

6. Having the desire to participate in a program, or 
service. 

 
Persons not meeting these criteria are welcome but must be 
escorted at all times by their personal care giver, for 
their well-being, while participating in activities on or 
off site.  When the personal care giver attends with 
his/her client they should be knowledgeable of the program, 
activity or service so that the instructor will not need to 
individually instruct the escort. 
 
The Currituck Senior Centers do not provide adult day 
care.”  

Commissioner’s Report 

Commissioner Taylor requested a sign from DOT reminding 
traffic that schools are open in Currituck County August 
25th. 

Commissioner Nelms commented on the golf cart ordinance. 

Commissioner Gregory commended the County Attorney on his 
efforts to get North River open for fishing.  He directed 
staff to send a letter to Mr. Daniels on his efforts also. 

Commissioner Etheridge commended the Corolla Ocean Rescue 
and the Currituck County School system. 

Commissioner Aydlett requested signs on the beach regarding 
new ordinance and location of trash cans. 

Chairman O’Neal reminded citizens to be cautious during the 
heavy traffic on the weekends. 

County Manager’s Report 

No comments 

Closed Session according to GS 143-318.11(3) to consult 
with attorney in order to preserve the attorney client 
privilege. 

Commissioner Rorer moved to go into closed session as 
mentioned above.  Commissioner Aydlett seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 

Adjourn 

64



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   25 

After reconvening from closed session, Commissioner Nelms 
moved to adopt the following resolution.  Commissioner 
Aydlett seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONDEMNATION TO ACQUIRE 
CERTAIN PROPERTY OF ROBERT R. DEGABRIELLE AND WIFE, LAURI 

T. DEGABRIELLE 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for the County of 
Currituck, North Carolina hereby determines that it is 
necessary and in the public interest to acquire an easement 
over certain property owned by Robert R. DeGabrielle and 
wife, Laurie T. DeGabrielle for the following purpose: 
To establish or improve storm water sewer and drainage 
systems; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proper officials or representative of the 
County of Currituck sought to acquire the needed interest 
in that certain property of Robert R. DeGabrielle and wife, 
Laurie T. DeGabrielle by negotiated conveyance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, unable to acquire the needed interest in that 
certain property of Robert R. DeGabrielle and wife, Laurie 
T. DeGabrielle by negotiated conveyance it is necessary to 
acquire the needed interest through proceedings established 
by Chapter 40A of the General Statutes of North Carolina. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of 
Commissioners for the County of Currituck, North Carolina, 
that: 
 
 Section 1. The County of Currituck shall acquire 
through the exercise of eminent domain, for the purposes 
stated above, the necessary easement for the public purpose 
described above over property owned by Robert R. 
DeGabrielle and wife, Laurie T. DeGabrielle more 
particularly shown on and that plat recorded at Plat 
Cabinet K, Slide 49 of the Currituck County  Registry and 
the county attorney shall institute the necessary 
proceedings under Chapter 40A of  the General Statutes of 
North  Carolina to acquire easement over, upon, on and 
through said property. 
 
 Section 2. This resolution is effective upon its 
adoption. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned. 

 

65



August 2, 2010, BOC Meeting   26 

 
 
 
 

66



 
 
 

Policy for Inclusion in Business Promotions 
Currituck County Department of Travel & Tourism 

Includes: Visual Displays, Printed Materials, Online Promotions and Other Marketing 
Conducted by the Tourism Department 

 
The purpose of this policy is to better facilitate the marketing of county tourism-related 
businesses.  Businesses to be promoted include: accommodations, restaurants, attractions, retail 
shops, activities, and other businesses that are frequented by tourists. Businesses may be 
included in the following county promotions: print (visitor’s guide, brochures, maps, etc.), 
website, television, radio, familiarization tours, press tours, and other marketing campaigns.  

 
For inclusion in business promotions, a business must: 
 

• compel a tourist to contact the business specifically due to the services provided, the 
items sold, or the activities offered. For example: a visitor would not make a special 
effort to contact or visit a specific gas station, convenience store, or grocery store; 
therefore, these businesses do not qualify and will not be included in the Travel & 
Tourism marketing campaigns. Other businesses NOT included in marketing efforts 
are: commercial and residential real estate companies that do not provide vacation 
rentals; automobile sales; construction companies; community newspapers; television 
stations; radio stations; adult entertainment; political websites; insurance companies; 
and any other non-tourism related retail store or business. 

 
• be located in Currituck County or provide services within the county borders. Any 

other branches, locations or services provided outside of the county will not be 
included or promoted; however, if a rental company leases or manages properties in 
Currituck County, but its office is located outside the county, it will be included. If a 
retail shop, for example, has stores in Corolla and Duck, only the Corolla store 
information will be listed. Nearby historical and cultural attractions and activities may 
also be included. 

 
• be clean, sanitary, and meet all state and county codes and ordinances including 

health department regulations. 
 

• be family-friendly and not promote nudity, drunkenness or lewd behavior. 
 

• not sell time-shares or offer gifts in exchange for attending a sales presentation. 
 
 

67



Note: Currituck County reserves the right to deny a business participation in its 
promotions campaigns should the business not meet county and state laws, rules, 
ordinances, and regulations. In addition, should the Tourism Department receive a 
complaint from the public about a business, that business must make a good faith effort to 
remedy the situation and exhibit to the Tourism Department its efforts to do so. A letter 
will be sent by the Tourism Director to the reported business stating details of the 
complaint.  The business owner or representative should respond in writing to the 
Tourism Director addressing the complaint within 30 days.  Should the business 
representative not respond, the Tourism Department may withdraw promotions of that 
business until the situation has been resolved.  
 

All websites linked from business sites must also adhere to this policy. If any website is found to 
be in violation of this policy, the business link and listing will be removed. 
 
Businesses are required to be in good standing with the appropriate regulatory agency and/or 
business association that governs that business. 
 
It is the responsibility of the business to provide up-to-date contact information and a description 
of the business to the Travel & Tourism Department. If a business fails to provide this 
information by established deadline dates, it may not be listed on the Travel and Tourism 
website, visitor’s guide and other promotional materials. 
 
The visitor information center staff will not recommend particular businesses/agencies, but will 
provide materials and guidance to visitors without bias. 
 

 
 

BROCHURES & VISUAL DISPLAYS IN COUNTY VISITOR INFORMATION CENTERS 
 
Currituck County tourism-related businesses will be promoted through the county visitor 
information centers if they meet the established county guidelines.  
 
Brochures or other printed materials may be placed in the county’s visitor information centers 
only after approval by the Director of Travel & Tourism or her designee. The requesting agency 
must send one example of the brochure to: Currituck County Department of Travel & Tourism, 
P.O. Box 39, Currituck, NC 27929, or hand deliver it to a visitor information center. Once 
approval is given, it is the responsibility of the requesting agency to print and deliver materials to 
the centers. The Travel & Tourism Department reserves the right to refuse brochures and 
materials that are deemed inappropriate or are not considered related to tourism.  
 

• All materials distributed through the visitor information centers will be provided free of 
charge to visitors. The sale of materials at the centers is prohibited. Additionally, no retail 
sales catalogs will be accepted for distribution at the centers. 
 

• Brochures/materials accepted for display and distribution include the following: 
 

68



o Accommodations – hotels, motels, bed & breakfasts, inns, rental homes, rental 
cottages, and campgrounds 

o Attractions 
o Activities and recreation 
o Restaurants 
o Special events and festivals  
o Nearby historical and cultural attractions 
o Visitor guides provided by the Currituck County Department of Travel & 

Tourism 
o Chamber Guides provided by the Currituck County Chamber of Commerce 
o Regional and area maps 
o Free newspapers that focus primarily on tourism and local attractions, events, etc. 
o Travel guides that promote local and regional attractions, activities and tourism-

related businesses 
o State of North Carolina travel publications 
o Any other materials determined to be acceptable by the Tourism Director  

 
For visual displays (e.g.: display cases), individual businesses may be grouped in a collective 
industry display (such as farm markets, shopping, vineyards). The Tourism Department is 
responsible for the design and set-up of display areas, which will be made available to businesses 
on a rotating basis.  
 
 
The Director of Travel & Tourism (or designee) reserves the right to refuse a business for 
promotion, brochure distribution or use of visual display that:  

o does not meet this policy,  
o or is not considered related to tourism. 

A business denied promotion, brochure distribution or use of visual display may submit a written 
appeal to the Currituck County Tourism Advisory Board.  Appeals shall be mailed to: Post 
Office Box 39, Currituck NC 27929. For questions, call (252) 435-2938. 
 
Adopted: August 9, 2010, Tourism Advisory Board 

 

69



Number TDA2011001

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15442-590441 Technology over $1,000 5,546$                       
15380-481000 Investment earnings 5,546$                     

5,546$                       5,546$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 16th day of August, 
2010 , passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2011.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - Increased by $5,546.

Tourism Promotion (15442) - To increase appropriations to purchase a replacement copy 
machine for the Corolla Visitor's Center.

70


	Agenda
	Action on PB 87-56 Monteray shores, PUD:
	minutes

	Public Hearing and Action:
	case analysis
	Exhibit A

	Public Hearing on close out of FY 2002 Community Development Block Grant Scattered Site Grant program
	CDBG Certificate of Completion

	Consideration of Ordinance
	ordinance
	ordinance

	Appointment to Walnut Island Sanitary District
	Walnut Island Sanitary District Appointment

	Award bid for Judicial Roof Replacement to Baker Roofing Company
	memo
	award

	Resolution Surplus Property 2006 Ford 500 
	resolution

	Amend Personnel Policy Fire & EMS probation change
	memo

	Budget Amendments
	Budget Amendments

	Approval of August 2, 2010, Minutes
	August 2 Minutes

	Consideration of Policy for inclusion in Business Promotions
	policy

	Budget Amendments for TDA
	TDA Budget Amendment


